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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (gavel) . .. The Land Use Committee meeting is now in session. I'd
like to introduce the Members that are here this afternoon. We do have Member Anderson,
Member Johnson, Member Kane, Member Molina, Member Hokama. Excused are Member
Mateo, Member Tavares, and our Chair for the Land Use Committee, Member Robert Carroll.
From the Council Staff we do have with us this afternoon, Carla Nakata, as well as Clarita
Balala. From the Administration we do have the Director ... Planning Director Michael Foley,
as well as Kivette Caigoy, the Environmental Planner from the Department of Planning.
Members, we'll be taking public testimony on each of the agenda items as they come up this
afternoon. The testimony will be ... we'll provide three minutes to people that want to testify
on each of the agenda item and the discretion of the Chair, an additional minute may be granted
to conclude their testimony. And if they need more time after three minutes has gone by and
after all of the testimonies by different members of the public has been completed, testifier can
come back and testify. Before we receive public testimony I'd like to have everyone tum off
their pagers, their cell phones so that we don't get interrupted.
Members, this afternoon we do have three items. Land Use Item 1, Change in Zoning and
Community Plan Amendment for Makawao Hongwanji Property in Haiku. The second item on
the agenda is Land Use 17, Conditional Permit for Relocation of Existing Concrete Batching
Plant for Ameron International Corporation, dba Ameron Hawaii, Kihei. And Land Use Item 18,
Change in Zoning for Kato Commercial Center in Kihei.
So at this time, Members, I'd like to bring forward those people that have signed up for
testimony on Land Use Item 1. And the first person to testify is Toshiyuki Umitani .
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

MR. UMITANI: Good afternoon, Vice-Chair Joseph Pontanilla and Members of the Land Use
Committee of the Maui County Council. My name is Toshiyuki Umitani and I'm the Resident
Minister of the Makawao Hongwanji Mission, and I recently became the new minister of the
Makawao Hongwanji Mission and I arrived in Maui on March of this year. I was born and
trained as a minister in Japan and arrived in Hawaii five years ago at the request of the Honpa
Hongwanji Mission of Hawaii. I feel very proud to have been placed in a community such as
Makawao in which the Hongwanji members are taking such an active role in church operations.
I'm here today to respectfully ask for your support in regards to the Change in Zoning and
Community Plan Amendment request for the Makawao Hongwanji's Pauwela property. I'd like
to also express by sincere gratitude to the Council Members for all the support they have given
the Makawao Hongwanji Mission during this Land Use amendment process. Once again, we
humbly ask for your support. Thank you very much.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? If not, thank you
very much. The second person to sign up for testimony on Land Use No. 1 is Masuyo Doi.
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MS. DOl: Good afternoon. I'm Masuyo Doi, a member of the Makawao Hongwanji Mission. My
husband and I have been a resident of Haiku since 1954 and that makes 51 years now. And we
raised five children and all of them attended the Pauwela Hongwanji and the Japanese School
which was held in Haiku School across the street. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. Members, any questions for the testifier? If not,
thank you again.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

CHANGE IN ZONING AND COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT FOR
MAKAWAO HONGWANJI PROPERTY (HAIKU) (C.c. No. 00-289)

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, the first item as stated, Land Use issue No.1, Change in
Zoning and Community Plan Amendment for Makawao Hongwanji Property, Haiku. Before us
this afternoon is a proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE
PAIA-HAIKU COMMUNITY PLAN AND LAND USE MAP FROM PARK TO SINGLE
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL FOR PROPERTY SITUATED AT HAIKU, MAUl, HAWAII FOR
THE MAKAWAO HONGWANJI MISSION". The purpose of this is to enact a Community Plan
Amendment from Park to Single Family Residential for the subject property.
The second proposed bill, "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO CHANGE ZONING FROM
URBAN RESERVE DISTRICT TO R-3 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT FOR PROPERTY
SITUATED AT HAIKU, MAUl, HAWAII FOR THE MAKAWAO HONGWANJI MISSION".
The purpose of this bill is to change the zoning from Urban Reserve District to R-3 Residential
District for the subject property.
At this time, I'd like to call upon the Director of Planning to give us some opening comments.
MR. FOLEY: Mr. Chairman, I'd like the Staff Report to be presented by Kivette.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. CAlGOY: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and Members of the Maui County Council. On July 20,
2005, the Maui County Planning Department transmitted the Planning Commission's
recommendation to the Council ... on Council Resolution 04-151. The property is situated in
Pauwela, Haiku, Maui, and measures approximately one acre in area. It currently is used for
single family residence since 1954. The property is located within the State Urban District, and
as previously noted, it's designated Park in the Paia-Haiku Community Plan and also located
within the Urban Reserve Zoning District. The property's not located within the boundaries of
the Special Management Area.
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A public hearing was held by the Maui Planning Commission on June 14,2005. At the hearing,
oral testimony and support of the Land Use amendment was heard by two individuals. The Maui
Planning Commission has recommended approval of the Community Plan Amendment to Single
Family and the Change in Zoning to R-3 Residential Zoning District. As part of the
Department's transmittal, we forwarded the revised draft ordinances, the Community Plan Map
No. CP-713, Change in Zoning Map No. L-2516, the Planning Department's Report to the
Planning Commission for the June 14, 2005 meeting, the Planning Department's
Recommendation Report to the Planning Commission for the June 14, 2005 meeting, and
notarized affidavit of the mailing of Notice of Public Hearing to all landowners within the
500-foot radius of the property boundaries, and the minutes of the public hearing held by the
Planning Commission. Also, just to note that as part of that transmittal, Page 15 of the
Department's Report to the Planning Commission was missing. However, we've handed out a
copy of that to you today. This concludes the Department's presentation.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. Members, any questions for the Department?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yes. The property based on the resolution was changed in the 1995 PaiaHaiku Community Plan was designated for Park in the Community Plan and Land Use Map.
Prior to that, what was the designation?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department.
MS. CAIGOY: I'm not sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay, and I guess as a follow-up then it would be that the existing
structures on the property have been in existence for as long as ...
MS. CAIGOY: Right. I think it was originally developed for the Pauwela Hongwanji Mission in the
early 1900s, I believe 1914.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah.
MS. CAIGOY: But it's been used for ... as a caretakers' residence since I think 1954.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And the property, or excuse me, the structure still remain to this day. Is
that correct?
MS. CAIGOY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. And maybe to the Director or to Ms. Caigoy, the change in the
Community Plan back in '95, was that ... was there a discussion in that process and was the
intention to change it or was . . . it was one of those things that had just slipped through the
cracks? Can you provide or can the Planning Department provide any comment as to how we
arrived there and now we're kind of going back to where we were or what the intended use has
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been all along? And if the Department is unable to comment, Chair, then that's no problem. I'm
just trying to, you know, get again some background on the property itself.
MS. CAIGOY: We don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay, okay. Thank you. I can find out myself.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And Members, just for some information, this particular
item is being requested by the County Council?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Anymore questions for the Department? Member
Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman, just a follow-up to Member Kane's line of
questioning. Would this property being designated as Park so was this an inappropriate
designation that we're trying to I guess right a wrong or a mistake? I'm just asking that for
clarification.
MR. FOLEY: Mr. Chairman, I believe there ... what happened was in the past sometimes properties
that were used for public facilities like churches were designated for Park when they probably
should have been designated for public facilities. And I'm not sure if it was maybe the Public
Facility District didn't exist at that time, but you know, that's why we have golf courses zoned
for apartments that are supposed to be in Park. I think sometimes the Zoning Districts were ...
didn't exist so other Zoning Districts like Park were used for churches.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, and the one last follow-up. I know, Mr. Foley, you weren't part
of the Planning Department way back when but what does the Department have right now as
preventative measure I guess, if you will, to, you know, so we don't have these types of
misinterpretations going on?
MR. FOLEY: We've been going through all of the Community Plans and the Zoning Maps to identify
inconsistencies so that those can be addressed when we update the General Plan and update the
Community Plans. We'll have to follow that process by also modifying the Zoning Map.
Unfortunately, sometimes situations like this come up where we can't wait for the County to take
the initiative years from now to correct and so this one is being taken separately, and we've had a
few others like that to the one in ... the one in Paia.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: It's the Ueoka property.
MR. FOLEY: Ueoka, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. Members, anymore questions? Member
Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I just wanted to point out to Members that at
the front of their binder there's a ... maybe three items in, there's a September 4, '04 letter to
Councilmember Wayne Nishiki who was then Chair of the Land Use Committee, from the
Hongwanji Mission. And attached to that letter is an October 2000 letter that the entire Council
sent to a representative of the Hongwanji Mission and in that it gives some historical background
as to what happened. And as I was working for Councilmember Nishiki at that time, what I
recall happened was that there was a recommendation to put the Community Plan designation as
Park from the Planning Department, and as no one from Hongwanji Mission apparently
according to them they didn't even know about it, so no one was at the meeting to alert the
Council to this. And so what Member Nishiki initiated at that time was a Community Plan
Amendment after the Community Plan had been adopted and designated this as Park, to take the
designation from Park to Public/Quasi-Public. And subsequent to that, that was in 2000, we now
see that Hongwanji Mission does not intend to use this property for church purposes and that
they indeed want to be able to sell this property. So that's why they want to put it in residential.
If I'm not mistaken I stand corrected by the Planning Department if anything I said there is
incorrect, but that's my recollection of it and that's what the body had determined back in 2000.
So it's gone from Public/Quasi-Public now to Residential. The request is for Residential, and as
that is the long standing use, my question to the Department is this parcel contains three lots or
two lots?
MS. CAIGOY: In the deed, there's two lots described and it's Lot 2 as described in the deed.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Lot 2 that's, that's getting the request for change?
MS. CAIGOY: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so Lot 2 is within Parcel 21 and then there would be I guess
Lot 2. Although the ordinance that we have ... then what is the zoning and the community plan
designation for Lot 1, which is also described in the deed? However, we're only being asked in
this ordinance to make the Zoning and Community Plan change to Lot 2. And is this property
subdivided? Is that why we have different ... two lots here?
MS. CAIGOY: The latest copy of the ordinance does specify that these ... this Community Plan
Amendment, Change in Zoning is to apply to Lot 2. As far as Lot 1, I did not confirm the
designations prior to this meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, it's a little confusing, Mr. Chair, because much of the
documentation references Parcel 21 but when you look at Exhibit 4, it shows that Parcel 21 is
divided into three different lots and that the existing single family resident . . . residents . . .
residence is on Lot 1. But they are asking for our action on Lot 2.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Anderson, I can call up the developer . . . the property owner to
explain, if you want to.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That would be fine but it just seems to me that the Planning
Department should know this. I mean they processed this request.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department.
MS. CAIGOY: I'm sorry. May I hear the question again?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Kivette, on Exhibit 4 of the Planning Department's Report,
you'll see on Exhibit 3 that Lot 21 ... the parcel rather, Parcel 21 of this TMK is highlighted,
and then on Exhibit 4 that same parcel is divided into three different lots. So I just want
clarification because the review ... the review documentation is all for Parcel 21, but yet the
ordinance is asking us to change zoning and community plan designation only to Lot 2.
MS. CAIGOY: Okay. I can clarify for you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
MS. CAIGOY: Mr. Chair?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MS. CAIGOY: Figure No.4 of the Planning Department's Report to the Planning Commission is a
theoretical subdivision of the property. And the reason this was done ... it was done as part of
the environmental assessment process to change the Zoning District to R-3. With this size of
property it has the potential for future subdivisions. So we require that they analyze, you know,
the full potential build out and that's what Figure 4 is. They prepared a theoretical subdivision as
part of the EA analysis. So the actual TMK property boundaries, if you refer to Exhibits 2 and 3
of the Department's Report, you'll see the actual property boundary lines. Figure 4 is just a
theoretical subdivision of the property, the subject property, as part of the EA analysis for full
potential build out.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. So we are ... (coughs) . .. excuse me, we are taking
action on the total Parcel 21 ?
MS. CAIGOY: Yes, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so the description attached to that that references Lot 1 and
Lot 2, Lot 2 is actually Parcel 21 ?
MS. CAIGOY: Correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you. And Lot 1, I imagine is adjacent Parcel 25
probably. Thank you for that clarification.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Members, anymore questions for the
Department? If not, I'd like to call on the applicant to come forward for some comments.
MR. MUNEKIYO: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee. My name is Mike
Munekiyo and we are assisting the Makawao Hongwanji in the coordination and processing of
the request before you today. We did prepare on behalf of the Makawao Hongwanji the
Environmental Assessment. And maybe if I could just provide a bit more clarification with
respect to number one, the parcel numbering and how it came to be and some of the history that
hopefully might help bring some clarity as to how this all came about. First of all, as just
discussed, Parcel 21 in its entirety is being sought in terms of entitlements request. Parcel 21 is
Lot 2. Lot 1 is across the street makai ofHonoapiilani Highway, I'm sorry, Hana Highway, and
back in the 1950s when Hana Highway was realigned it actually bifurcated the Pauwela
Hongwanji property. So part of it, Parcel 20 ... TMK 20 lies makai of the highway, that's the
cemetery, and remaining Parcel 21 is what is before you today. And as Kivette said, we looked at
it through the EA process as the potential for developing under the R-3 scenario would allow for
three lots, and so it was a theoretical concept plan and really does not represent a specific
development proposal as such.
With respect to history, the original Community Plan for Paia-Haiku designated the parcel a
Single Family and as Councilmember Anderson correctly noted, it was redesignated in the last
update to the Community Plan, and unfortunately, through that process I guess the temple was
unaware that that procedure was ongoing. So it's a matter of seeing now it might be able to
address that I suppose unfortunate set of circumstances that occurred a number of years ago.
And again at this point what the temple is seeking to do is to recognize that property has been
used for single family use for a number of years now, 1954, exclusively for caretakers or rental
purposes. The temple, by the way, Pauwela Hongwanji merged with Makawao Hongwanji in the
1970s, mid-70s, and at that time the actual temple structure was removed, and from the mid-70s
to today it's been used exclusively for single family purposes. So we'd be happy to answer any
further questions that the Committee may have.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Anderson.

Thank you.

Members, any questions for the applicant?

Member

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. Thank you for being here, Mr. Munekiyo. Is it the
intention of Hongwanji to subdivide as indicated in the theoretical subdivision?
MR. MUNEKIYO: It is not the intent for the Hongwanji to subdivide but I might add that this
Hongwanji is hoping to sell the property and the reason for this is they, at the Makawao
Hongwanji property on Makawao Avenue they recently acquired what is known as the Masusako
property right next door which they've been using for overflow parking for bon dances so forth,
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especially activities, and they've been consolidating properties. They had another parcel in Kula
which they were able to sell to help this acquisition and what they're trying to do is basically
provide for a viable physical plant at Makawao and through consolidation of properties. So
although they have no intent to subdivide it themselves, the hope is that they might be able to
generate some income from the property.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So potentially if they sell the property, then whoever buys it has
the option to subdivide it potentially-MR. MUNEKIYO: Potentially, if they so choose.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --to three different lots.
MR. MUNEKIYO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Have you explored that option with them at all?
MR. MUNEKIYO: That the temple do the subdivision?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
MR. MUNEKIYO: I don't think that's been discussed but I think that was raised in one of our earlier
discussions earlier this week with members so perhaps that's something that could be considered.
But right now I think they're kind of looking at our best to manage their resources and be able to
finance the facilities that they have at their Makawao Hongwanji site.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, anymore questions for the applicant? If not,
thank you very much. Members, before I go any further at this time the Chair would like to
close public testimony for this particular item, Land Use Item No.1, ifthere's no objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. The Chair would like to recommend that we
approve the bill for an ordinance to amend the Paia-Haiku Community Plan and Land Use Map
from Park to Single Family Residential for properties situated at Haiku, Maui, Hawaii, for the
Makawao Hongwanji Mission and a bill for an ordinance to change zoning from Urban Reserve
District to R-3 Residential District for properties situated at Haiku, Maui, Hawaii, for the
Makawao Hongwanji Mission.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So moved. Second.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Anderson, seconded by Member Molina. All in
favor say aye.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sorry. Discussion? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. I just wanted to note that the letter that was cited by
my colleague, Ms. Anderson, dated .. .(coughs) . .. excuse me, October 23 rd that was ... I think
she cited that it was signed by the entire Council. I just wish to make the correction that ...
because I recall this incident. Not incident, but this moment in time, if you will. That there were
five signatures out of a nine member body on that and unfortunately not all the Members were
approached to provide their support in this letter signing. I just wanted to make that correction
for the records since it was stated that all Members signed off.
As to the motion on the floor related to this document and this item, it's been a long time
coming. This is from 2000 and here we are at 2005 so I'm glad that it's finally here and that we
can move forward and I'll be supporting. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Kane. Anymore discussion? Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chairman. I'm happy to support this zoning
request and assist the church with their endeavors. And I think the proposed zoning change
makes things consistent for what the properties have been used for all this time so I'll be
supporting this. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Anymore discussion? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yeah, this has been a long time coming
and I'm happy to support this and I'm sure former Councilmember Nishiki will be happy to see
this concluded after all these years, as I'm sure the members of Hongwanji are. So I appreciate
the efforts that were taken by the Planning Department to process this on behalf of the Council.
It's rare that the Council initiates a Community Plan Amendment and in doing so necessitates the
need for an environmental assessment. So we do appreciate your efforts, Kivette, in completing
this on behalf of us so thank you very much. And on behalf of Hongwanji, I'm sure they're also
grateful.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Members, anymore discussion? Members,
the Chair would like to also include the filing of County Communication No. 00-289-COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --without objections. Thank you. All in favor ofthe motion say aye.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Opposed? Motion is carried unanimously.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Hokama, Johnson, Kane, Mateo,
Molina, and Vice-Chair Pontanilla.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Tavares and Chair Carroll.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of revised proposed bills and FILING of
communication.

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much.

LU-17

CONDITIONAL PERMIT FOR RELOCATION OF EXISTING CONCRETE
BATCHING PLANT FOR AMERON INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
DBAAMERON HAWAII (KIHEI) (C.c. No. 05-265)

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members. The second item on the agenda .. .(change tape) . .. is
for a Conditional Permit for relocation of existing concrete batching plant for Ameron
International Corporation dba Ameron Hawaii (Kihei). This is a result of County Communication
No. 05-265 from the Planning Director, transmitting a proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN
ORDINANCE GRANTING AMERON INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION, dba AMERON
HAWAII A CONDITIONAL PERMIT FOR THE RELOCATION OF THE EXISTING
CONCRETE BATCHING PLANT WITHIN THE COUNTY AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT
FOR PROPERTY SITUATED AT KIHEI, MAUl, HAWAII". The purpose of the proposed bill
is to grant a request from Munekiyo and Hiraga, Inc., on behalf of Ameron International
Corporation for a one-year Conditional Permit for the operation of a concrete batching plant on
approximately 2.002 acres within the County Agricultural District in Kihei. At this time I'd like
to call on Mr. Foley to provide us with some comments.
MR. FOLEY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Loudermilk.

I'd like the Staff Report to be presented by Robyn
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VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you very much. Robyn.
MS. LOUDERMILK: Good afternoon, Chair and Members of the Committee. The Ameron Hawaii is
requesting a Conditional Permit for the relocation of the existing concrete batching facility within
the County Agricultural District. The land uses ... it is in the State Agricultural District, KiheiMakena Community Plan Agricultural, Zoning Agricultural, and it is located outside of the
Special Management Area. The request for the relocation is due to the applicant's requirement to
relocate this facility as the lands that the current facility is operating on have been acquired by the
State Department of Transportation as part of the Mokulele Highway Widening Project. The
public hearing was held by the Maui Planning Commission on June 28, 2005. There were no
testimony presented at that meeting and the Commission recommended approval of the
Conditional Permit with six conditions. Also at the June 28 th meeting, the Maui Planning
Commission also took action to grant approval of the Land Use Commission Special Use Permit
that was also required for this project. And I would just like to note that the ... this Council
extended a Conditional Permit for the existing concrete batching facility by Ordinance No. 3308,
Bill 64, which became effective on August 5th of this year. And that concludes the Department's
summary.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much.
Department? Member Johnson.

Members, any questions for the Planning

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Thank you for the explanation. My only question would be
because we're just ... we just approved basically the other one. Are the conditions that were
attached to the other plant also attached to this new plant, like the roadway, the access road that
should be paved, and ...
MS. LOUDERMILK: No, because certain conditions have already been complied with. Other than the
road paving there was only one new condition attached and that was that the annual report that
was ... that's required by the Clean Air Branch be submitted to the Planning Department for their
files. But other than the paving, everything else on project specific remains the same with the
exception of the addition of the annual reports filed to the Department of Health for the Clean Air
Branch Permit also be submitted for file with the Planning Department.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So all of these conditions are still applicable because they run
with the permit?
MS. LOUDERMILK: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. That's just all I wanted to make sure. And then the progress
on the actual access road, is that already been completed?
MS. LOUDERMILK: I do not know. That may be something that the applicant can answer.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much. And I would like to find that out from
the applicant if they're going to be-VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --giving a short presentation. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you, Member Johnson. Members, anymore questions for
the Department? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Yes, I'm referencing ... the Department of
Water Supply recommended that a variety of conservation measures be included in the project
design. They note that the project overlies the southern tip of the Paia aquifer and neighbors
Waiakoa Stream. Best Management Practices are recommended to minimize infiltration and
runoff from principal operations. Ms. Loudermilk, what measures will be taken by the applicant
to ensure that there is not infiltration or runoff from this site?
MS. LOUDERMILK: As part of the Project Specific Conditions there are several things that the
applicant will be doing. First of all, they are required to submit a final drainage report and Best
Management Plan with the grading plans for review and approval prior to the issuance of the
grading permits and this will be done with the Department of Public Works and Environmental
Management. And that's where the various BMPs come in ... from the Water Department so it
is covered under there.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Under the grading ordinance.
MS. LOUDERMILK: Under the grading ordinance.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Because I don't see anything in the conditions that address that
which is why I brought it up. They have a Conditional Permit that's for one year, correct?
MS. LOUDERMILK: We are recommending one year for the Conditional Permit.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So they'll have to come back to the Council for an extension after a
year?
MS. LOUDERMILK: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Members, anymore questions? We do
have the Public Works Deputy Director here. If the Public Works Deputy would like to make
some comments in regards to this plant? No comments? Okay. Members, any questions for the
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Public Works Department? If not, can I have the applicant come forward - provide us with some
comments.
MR. MUNEKIYO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee. My name is Mike
Munekiyo. And I'm here this afternoon on behalf of Ameron Hawaii and just to respond to
couple points that were raised by Councilmember Johnson. The access road, by the way I did
hand out a larger version of the relocation map, and it's titled Figure 2, Site Plan. And that Site
Plan shows the relative locations between the existing plant site which is shown in a dash ...
within the dash boundaries and the new plant site within the solid boundaries.
As to the access road from the new plant site to the realigned Mokulele Highway, that access road
will be constructed when Mokulele Highway is actually built or when the relocation is completed.
And just to let you know, we've . . . Ameron has been coordinating with DOT as to the
scheduling of this phase ofMokulele Highway.
One of the first things that will be done, in fact, the bid documents have already been let, it would
be the installation of a new waterline which basically traverses the existing plant site and that
would then trigger the relocation, and with that relocation then a new access drive would be
installed. And just to add further perhaps to what Ms. Loudermilk has stated, the ... with respect
to managing runoff from the site, there is going to be an onsite storage basin so that will be one
element of the BMP Program. So again, we are required to develop that BMP Program and I
think the engineer has come up with a program which would allow for the proper management of
storm flows.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the applicant? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Mike, thank you very much for explaining that. With regard to
the I guess it would be the County's Police Department I didn't ... I went through this and I
didn't see a comment as to how the traffic flow would be impacted or would it not be with that
construction of the new roadway and the relocation of the plant. Was there any kind of comment
that you received either from the DOT or from our Police Department?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Munekiyo.
MR. MUNEKIYO: Council Member, I can't recall specifically whether the Police Department had
commented with respect to traffic, but just for the information of the Committee, upon the
realignment of Mokulele Highway, Mokulele as it continues on and becomes Piilani Highway
will be the main through roadway and North Kihei Road will then become the secondary
connecting element into the roadway system. At that connection with Mokulele and North Kihei
Road, there will be a signalized traffic ... signalized intersection. So North Kihei Road coming
in from the West Side and on the East Side would be the access road from this relocated batch
plant. And so access to and from the batch plant will be controlled at that signalized intersection.
So I think what DOT has done together with the applicant is to corne up with a traffic control plan
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that's probably best in tenns of minimizing the impacts to that flow of traffic from Mokulele
along to Piilani Highway.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I really appreciate that because every time we have a new
roadway or a new intersection or anything, there's always a potential for accidents. Your clients
will be the only people though that are going to be accessing this particular roadway or will it be
utilized by other members of the community?
MR. MUNEKIYO: Actually, there's one other user in that area and that's Monsanto.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. MUNEKIYO: So they will be accessing at that signalized intersection as well.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But they don't have and I don't believe this plant would have
high volume traffic.
MR. MUNEKIYO: No, not at all. Right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Members, anymore questions? If not, thank
you, Mr. Munekiyo. At this time the Chair would like to call on there are any people out in the
audience that haven't signed up for public testimony in regards to this item, please come forward.
Seeing no one, the Chair would like to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. On September 13,2005, we sent a letter to the
Department of Corporation Counsel seeking suggested wording that would pennit applicant to
continue operating at the existing site until the new site is in operation. I'd like to have some
comments from Mr. Giroux.
MR. GIROUX: Thank you, Chair. We did receive that letter. I had some chance to look it over and to
try to see how we could remedy the situation as you pointed out that if the language to the old
ordinance, Ordinance 3308, as it states right now it says as far as when that ordinance would
tenninate it says that the condition ... that the Conditional Pennit shall be valid for a period of
three years from the effective date of this ordinance, or until the issuance of the new Conditional
Pennit ordinance for the new location. Reading that, that would mean that the ordinance that we
have in front of us now once that's passed, this Ordinance 3308 would immediately tenninate.
That would be our interpretation anyway_ So in order to find a solution what I did there was
suggested in the letter that we merely change some of the language in the bill, but I think it raises
a little bit of a concern that I believe a cleaner way to deal with it is we can still deal with this
ordinance but it would have to be modified in such a way in order to include an amendment to
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Ordinance 3308. And basically, I looked at some suggested language and this can be presented I
guess, you know, either at a next meeting or even debated today.
The problem is is that I feel that by doing this, the method that I'm suggesting, it would change
the title significantly and raise questions of Sunshine Law and maybe require re-agendaing [sic]
just so the public is clear exactly what we're doing with this bill because basically we would be
taking care of a modification of the older ordinance and also passing a new Conditional Permit
ordinance. So basically what I've done is I've taken Ordinance 3308 and incorporated into the
bill we have now and basically shown ... show the section that I want to amend which would be
the Section 2 and then the Paragraph 2. And what I would be doing is deleting the language that
states the issuance of the new Conditional Permit ordinance and then I would be adding the
batching plant for a new location as operable, whichever occurs first. It's kind of awkward to just
say this orally. I think it would be better to have a written draft that we could disseminate. It
would make it a lot clearer as to what I'm doing because at this point just to try to explain this
orally is really confusing.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Giroux. Members, any questions? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Not so much a question as basically having heard what Mr. Giroux
has said. My wish would be that we get the language in front of us. We properly notice the
agenda item and then deal with it at a future Council meeting.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's the intentions of the Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
MR. GIROUX: And Chair, I can work with your Staff to make sure that this is a workable solution.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Giroux. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. I think my question was answered. So
basically the changes that are being proposed here are substantive enough for reposting of the
agenda to give the public ample opportunity to give comment as well as avoid any potential
Sunshine Law issues. Am I, am I clear ... correct on that?
MR. GIROUX: I believe so. I think it's the most cautious approach at this point-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Alright.
MR. GIROUX: --because we're including a new ordinance ... amendment of an ordinance that wasn't
mentioned previously.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. And maybe you can help me,
Chairman, and I don't know if you're able to respond because ... I'll just ask the question. I
think it's a little problemsome when we get to this particular point and we're dealing with
changes such as this when it could have been done prior so that by the time this issue had in fact
come back to this body that we'd be able to deal with it in its entirety instead of once again
another delay in the project because somebody neva dot their i's and cross their t's or whatever
the issue is. But, you know, would you be aware whether, whether this is a newly developed
problem or something that had just had not been dealt with in its proper form?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for that question, Member Mateo. As we were reviewing the
application, it came to mind that we had already approved a Conditional Permit for three years for
this batching plant and part of the provisions of the first ordinance was that if and when this
ordinance period has passed, the permit would be considered pau. In this case here it's moving
the plant from one location to another location and once we do move the batching plant, then the
first ordinance would be invalid because there's no more batching plant at that area. And the
reason to this is that if we were to not act on this thing here and say, yeah, go ahead and move,
then they couldn't be in operation, you know, on a timely basis. You know, they would have to
stop operation, move the plant, come back and consider another permit from us or an ordinance
from us to continue doing their business. So rather than have that, you know, we'll take care the
previous bill making sure that continued operation for the plant can be obtained.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So anymore discussions? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate the recommendation
because the only ordinance I see in here is the previous 3308. And my concern is that when you
read the Planning Commission minutes and the report, they originally had 11 conditions attached,
and then the Planning Commission added another condition, 12, and I don't see those conditions
anywhere here. The current ordinance only has six conditions. And the other thing I'm
concerned about is that the Planning Commission minutes that we have received as of September
8th start on Page 42 of the minutes, which reference specifically the discussion regarding this
Special Use and Conditional Use Permit for the relocation. But when you read the minutes,
there's reference in the minutes to people having testified at the beginning of the meeting with
complaints regarding dust. And I think that we should have those minutes before us rather than
... I mean the whole point in taking public testimony is to allow the Council to see if there are
people in the area that have concerns and obviously there were. There was a condition that was
attached, Condition 12, to hopefully address those concerns, but I'd like to see what they are. I'm
assuming they are probably people from Kihei Villages because they are downwind or probably
receIvmg some ...
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can we get that? Carla, can we get the entire minutes for that particular
meeting?
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, Staff would just point out that the 12 conditions referenced by
Councilmember Anderson pertain to the State Special Use Pennit, not to the Conditional Pennit.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So the Planning Commission did not attach those same 12 pennits
in their recommend ... conditions in their recommendation to the Council?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: They made no conditional recommendations to the Council?
MS. NAKATA: Perhaps the Planner can address that, but it doesn't appear so.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Planning Department.
MS. LOUDERMILK: There are two different pennits. Should the Council wish to receive the approval
letter of the Special Use Pennit with the 12 conditions, we can forward that along with the full
minutes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I think that would be very helpful. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Anymore questions, Members? If not, the Chair would
recommend that we defer this item, ifthere's no objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (Exc. DK, CT, and RC)
ACTION:

DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. At this time, the Chair would like to take a ten
minute recess. We'll reconvene at 2:40. Thank you.... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

2:29 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:42 p.m.

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (gavel) . .. The Land Use Committee meeting is now reconvened.
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CHANGE IN ZONING FOR KATO COMMERCIAL CENTER (KIHEI) (C.C.

LU-IS

No. 03-213)

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, we've been waiting here ten minutes for the applicant to come
and we've made contact with the applicant. The applicant indicated that her husband is not
feeling well. So at this time without any objections, the Chair would like to defer this item.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (Exc. CT and RC)
ACTION:

DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Anderson.

Thank you very much.

Any announcements, Members?

Member

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chairman. I have no problem with the deferral but I'd
like to request that when this comes back that the Planning Department check the minutes because
it appears that again ... I haven't been able to check both of them ... there's minutes from two
meetings in regards to this. But it also appears that the public testimony at the beginning of the
meeting has not been included.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Fine.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And I'd very much like to see that.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Department, can that be provided the next time we meet on
this item?
MS. SUYAMA: Yeah. We can go re-verify if that's the complete minutes or not.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you. Anymore issues? None. Okay, meeting is
adjourned. Thank you very much. . .. (gavel) . ..
ADJOURN: 2:44 p.m.

APPROVED:

'ANILLA, Vice-Chair
Land Use Committee

lu:min:050914:cb

Transcribed by: Clarita Balala
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